Planning and Zoning Board Meeting Minutes - Final June 3, 2025

Location: 2134 and 2174 NW Commerce Lakes Drive.

Legal Description: Go Team Industrial Park-Unit Three-Block B Lots 13
& 14

The request is for a Special Exception Use (SEU) to allow a Concrete
Plant at this location per Section 158.136 (C) (8) of the Zoning Code.

There being no discussion, Acting Vice Chair Previte moved to table
P24-134, Decorative Concrete Specialist of South Florida, to a date
uncertain. Board Member Reikenis seconded the motion, which passed
unanimously by voice vote.

8.c P24-169 Southern Grove-SG-8 - Commercial - Landscape 2025-517

Modification

Location: Northwest corner of SW Becker Rd and SW Village Parkway.
Legal Description: Tract C1 of Kenley, according to the plat thereof, as
recorded in Plat Book 104, Page 16, of the Public Records of St. Lucie
County, Florida.

This is a request to provide enhanced landscaping in lieu of an
architectural buffer wall on the western and northern portions of the
property per Section 154.12 of the City of Port St. Lucie Code of
Ordinances.

Acting Chair Norton inquired if the Board had any ex parte communications
to disclose, to which each member indicated they had none.

Marissa Da Breo-Latchman, Planning and Zoning, previously sworn, stated
that the official file was sent to the City Clerk’s Office within five days of the
meeting. She asked that the file be entered into the record.

Planner Da Breo-Latchman provided a PowerPoint presentation of
P24-169, Southern Grove, SG-8, Commercial, Landscape Modification.

Board Member Pettibon asked if there was a significant overhead FPL
easement located on the west buffer, to which Planner Da Breo-Latchman
responded in the affirmative.

Board Member Spatara inquired about the maintenance portion of the
condition, to which Planner Da Breo-Latchman responded that it must be
maintained at a minimum of 6 feet.

Attorney Hertz indicated that the maintenance portion would be dealt with
through the City’s Code Compliance.

Director Savage-Dunham advised that there would be a maintenance
Board for the Commercial Plaza, which would be responsible for
maintenance. In the event the Plaza is not being maintained, it would be

Page 6 of 9



Planning and Zoning Board Meeting Minutes - Final June 3, 2025

referred to Code Compliance.

Acting Vice Chair questioned if there was concern since nothing was being
developed in the area, to which Director Savage-Dunham stated there was
going to be multi-family to the north.

Acting Chair Norton inquired about the FPL buffer on the west side, to
which Planner Da Breo-Latchman stated the buffer was 110 feet wide.

Kevin Velinsky, Lucido & Associates, was present on behalf of the
Applicant.

Board Member Pettibon asked if the property to the north was under the
same ownership, to which Mr. Velinsky responded that a different entity
owned that portion.

Acting Vice Chair Previte questioned if a landscape berm existed on the
north side, to which Mr. Velinsky stated it would be a 10-foot landscape
buffer easement to include a 6-foot hedge and shade trees. Mr. Velinsky
clarified that there would not be a berm. Acting Vice Chair Previte advised
that he preferred a landscape buffer over a concrete wall.

Acting Chair Norton expressed concern over the landscape buffer on the
north side multifamily future development. Mr. Velinsky noted he would
have to speak to the Applicant and noted the multifamily development had
not yet been planned from the southern parcel to the north. He inquired if
they could condition that a berm be placed instead, to which Director
Savage-Dunham advised that it was under the Board'’s discretion to place
conditions even if the Applicant was not amenable to them; however, and
noted that berms could potentially interrupt drainage patterns.

Board Member Pettibon indicated he would be supportive of allowing the
landscape buffer on the west side and architectural buffer on the north
side.

Acting Chair Norton expressed concern over the north side of the property,
with plans for residential multifamily development that will come to the
area.

Director Savage-Dunham explained that there was a narrow strip of land
between the driveway and the other properties. She advised that a wall
would fit in better than a berm, which required a greater spread.

Acting Chair Norton opened the Public Hearing. No one signed up to
speak, Acting Chair Norton closed the Public Hearing.

Page 7 of 9



Planning and Zoning Board Meeting Minutes - Final June 3, 2025

8.d

There being no further discussion, Board Member Pettibon moved to
approve P24-169, Southern Grove, SG-8 Commercial, Landscape
Modification with the condition that the Applicant utilize an enhanced
landscaping buffer for the western side of the property and the
architectural buffer on the northern side of the property. Board Member
Spatara seconded the motion, which passed unanimously by voice vote.

P25-041 Dalton Learning Academy - Special Exception Use 2025-523
Location: 10011 S US Highway 1

Legal Description: Town Centre Parcel A (OR Book 25, Page 35)

This is a request for approval of a Special Exception Use (SEU) to allow

a K-8 private school within the Commercial General (CG) Zoning

District.

Acting Chair Norton inquired if the Board had any ex parte communications
to disclose, to which each member indicated they had none.

Planner Grubbs, previously sworn, stated that the official file was sent to
the City Clerk’s Office within five days of the meeting. She asked that the
file be entered into the record.

Planner Grubbs provided a PowerPoint presentation of P24-041, Dalton
Learning Academy, Special Exception Use.

Board Member Pettibon expressed support for the item.

Acting Chair Norton asked if the Applicant owned the nearby church, to
which Planner Grubbs responded in the negative. He also questioned who
would be monitoring the queuing aspect, to which Planner Grubbs stated
that they had been vetting the queuing process with Public Works and the
City’s Traffic Consultant and were contemplating a condition of approval
that the City may monitor and follow up in six months.

Gail Dawkins and Ruberson Frederic, the Applicants for the project, were
provided the Oath of Testimony by the Deputy City Clerk. Ms. Dawkins
explained that they had not taken into consideration the impact fees for the
project and asked the Board Members for assistance, to which Board
Member Pettibon informed Ms. Dawkins that the Board did not have
discretion and would need to request assistance from the City Council.

Director Savage-Dunham indicated that the Applicant could place a
request to the City Manager’s Office and noted there were strict criteria for

the waiver.

Acting Chair Norton opened the Public Hearing. There being no one

Page 8 of 9



